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Chairman’s statement

This has been another year of sirong progress as the Company has continued to diversify its income base from the sales of its
traditional supercapacitor products with the sale of a non exclusive licence to AVX; another year of plus 100% growth in Murata
royallies; expansion of our efforis in the autemotive markets and the first design win for the Thinline range of supercapacitors.

Licensing activity for the past twelve months has been exiremely positive, with the finalisation of the AVX license and the
broadening of the Murata agreement. CAP-XX licensed its patents to AVX on a non-exclusive basis for a range of prismatic and
cylindrical sizes of supercapacitors. Under the terms of the licence, CAP-XX will receive annual licence fees, plus guarterly
guaranteed minimum royalty payments, over a three-year period denominated in Sterling, reflecting the fact that CAP-XX is
quoted on AIM. Thereafter, CAP-XX will receive a 5% royalty for the life of the patents, with the royalty being based on the
volume of sales of supercapacitors sold by AVX covered by CAP-XX patents. The initial licence fee of £1 million, which has been
booked as revenue in the FY16 financial year, was paid by AVX in early July 16, with the first royalties under this licence already
having been received. For the Company, the AVX licence deal is very significant. Not only does it provide further validation of
the strength of the CAP-XX intellectual property but it also validates our belief that the Company can successfully monetise the
value of this intellectual property in ways other than through direct product sales. In addition, this agreement opens up new
income streams and sales markets for CAP-XX and new possibilities for ongoing collaboration.

In April 2016, Murata and CAP-XX reached agreement to broaden the existing licence agreement {o include battery markets and
additional supercapacitor sizes. Following this agreement, Murata announced in late June 16 that it was launching a range of
tithium ion batteries, Murata has confirmed that mass production of the new device commenced in June 2016 and that it plans to
expand its product line-up to meet future demand for large capacity devices. Royalty payments from Murata confinue to grow
with total royalties for the year ended June 16 totalling A$238K. This is the second successive year that Murata's royalties have
doubled from the previous year (2015; A$108K). The Board remains confident that the cash flow from Murata's royalty siream
will continue to grow.

Total sales revenue for the year to 30 June 16 increased by A$0.6 million to AUDS$5.0 milion compared to A$4.4 million in 2015.
The CAP-XX sales revenue has also seen a significant shift in mix. While sales from licencing and royalties have increased,
sales of the traditional small supercapacitors have declined over the last twelve months as many of CAP-XX’s customers have
experienced difficult market conditions and fooked to reshape their own businesses. Some of the Company's traditionally strong
markets such as Point of Sale (POS) and handheld terminals are in a state of transition, just as new market opportunities for
CAP-XX like smart credit cards, security cards, energy harvesting and wearables take off, QOverall, the Board remains pleased
with the number of [arge volume opportunities that are currently being pursued by the CAP-XX sales team. The majority of these
opportunities are in the Internet of Things {loT) market and may require even thinner ultrathin supercapacitors at 0.4mm
compared to our current 0.6mm Thinline products. A 0.4 mm product is under development. The Company is focussed on
accelerating the adoption of its products into these key target markets.

Total operational expenditure has increased on a year-on-year basis. The Board has made a conscious decision to invest
resources in R&D, product development and manufacturing o lower the Group’s manufacturing costs and to develop products
with higher gross margins. The majority of the additional expense incurred was eligible research and development expenditure
and will be subject to a 45% subsidy from the Australian Federal Government, with the total tax claim for the year to June 20186
increasing to A$1,537K (2015: A$1,127K). The Company also taok advantage of an offer for a A§1m ling of credit facility to fund
any delay in the payment of this tax claim. This facility is expected to be repaid in full in October 2016. In the financial year
ended June 2016, CAP-XX also incurred "one-off' expenses assaociated with the AVX and Murata licensing agreements plus
costs associated with the re-negotiation of the Lane Cove lease. Due to the timing of these new arrangements, the full financial
benefit was not realised in the year to 30 June 2016 but will be in the current and future financial years.

The operating result for the year to June 20116 was a loss of A$1.13million (2015: loss of A$1.9 million). The result for the year to
June 2016 also includes a one-off catch up in employee share options expense due to timing and vesting conditions with
additional expense being recognised in the early years after the grant of the options rather than on a straight line basis.
However, , if the options are never exercised and eventually expire there is no possibility to write back this expense and
associated reserve. Consequenily, while the Board acknowledges that it has no alternative but to comply with the accounting
standards, it strongly rejects the premise behind this accounting treatment as it severely disadvantages techrnology start-ups. As
a result of this change in accounting treatment, in the year to 30 June 2016, there was an increase in the expense related to
these share based payments of A$289K to a total of AS416K (from a total of A$127k in FY15).

The past twelve months have seen increasing market interest in CAP-XX's large cell products. In addition to the truckStart
module for heavy vehicles, the Company has also developed the powerModule for passenger vehicles. Several sales of both
truckStart and powerModule products and individual cells have been made for heavy vehicle and passenger vehicle applications
globally, While these sales are still for evaluation purposes, the results from customers to date have been excelient and
discussions are continuing with potential partners on how best io manufacture, market and finance these new business streams.
Further design refinement and development of the large cell supercapacitor is continuing fo ensure that our customers'
expectations are realised, if not bettered. And while the majority of interest for our large supercapacitors is coming from
international automotive markets, we have also received interest from the grid and stationary energy storage markets.

We are looking forward to further positive progress in the coming year.

Patrick Elliott
Chairman 4ih Qctober 2016

Page 5



.. Business Review

Review of Operations and Activities

The signing of the AVX licence is a further endorsement of our strategy to develop substantial and recurring income from
our intellectual property, along with income from sales of small supercapacitors, large supercapacitors and energy storage
modules incorporating our supercapacitor cells.

The royalties from Murata have continued to improve with royalties for the 12 months fo 30 June 2016 more than doubling
o A$236K (2015: A$109K) for the second successive year. The level of royalty increase is pleasing and is consistent
with the discussions held with Murata management in regard to sales and marketing efforts and known design wins. CAP-
XX's internal sales team are also observing that Murata's presence in the traditional supercapacitor markets is becoming
increasingly active and the Board remain confident that the royalties will continue to increase in the foreseeable future
especially with the broadening of the Murata license to incorporate the Murata lithium-ion battery which was released to
the market in June 2016.

During the year, we continued to invest significant resources in redesigning products and processes to reduce
manufacturing costs and to improve product performance as well as to reduce the number of standard products for which
we carry inventory. The results to date are very significant and we expect to see the benefits continuing to flow through
the 20186 financial year with an expected increase in sales volumes.

Business Environment

CAP-XX technolagy provides a competitive advantage over other supercapacitor manufacturers, such as Maxwell
Technologies, loxus, Nippon Chemicon Corpoeration and other Chinese and Korean compeitors. The Directors believe
that other manufacturers are unable {o match the CAP-XX technology for thinness, power density, energy density and
reliability. Many competitors manufacture higher-capacity, large package devices and focus on applications where the
combination of thinness, energy density and power density is not an issue. In the future, CAP-XX's surface mount
capability will offer another very significant point of difference with the competition.

Portable electronic devices, one of the fastest growing segments of the electronics market, provide one of the greatest
opporunities for CAP-XX’s products. Driven by customer requests, manufaciurers are constantly adding to the functions
and applications available on these devices. This means that power management continues to be an increasingly
important consideration. The other important factor is size as devices become smaller whilst their capabilities increase.
During the year the Company was successful in winning new business from a range of markets including smart credit
cards; energy harvesting; mobile phones; M2M communication modules; medical products and other preducts targeting
the [oT. However we also face threats in these markets from cheaper cylindrical supercapacitors where our thin form
factor, high power and long life are not valued as highly as lower initial cost. In addition our customers markets
themselves are constantly evolving as new products and technologies threaten the incumbents. tn this enviranment CAP-
XX needs to remain flexible to changing business conditions.

Automotive applications such as Stop-Start systems, flat battery jump-starters, hybrid electric vehicles and electric
vehicles also present very atiractive opportunities for CAP-XX's products. Numerous automotive OEMs and automotive
Tier-1 suppliers have purchased products such as our truckStart and powerModules for evaluation. The feedback to date
has been very pleasing. During the year, additional plant and equipment was purchased and commissioned to enhance
our ability to produce these large supercapacitors and to assemble them into modules suitable for use in motor vehicles.
However automotive markets have historically been slow to adopt new technology and this remains a risk today.

Opportunities

CAP-XX is continuing to refine the products we offer for the loT, portable electronics and other markets for our traditional
small supercapacitors and our Thinline supercapacitors. The Thinfine range of supercapacitors , which are just 0.6mm
thick, were developed to address the space-constrained needs of the Internet of Things (loT) and during the year we
achieved our first design win for a smar credit card. The Company is actively dealing with many other similar applications
where the feedback has been very positive. However we have also received feedback that even at 0.6mm the thickness
may be too much and that 0.4mm is required. The Company is watching these developments closely and has put in place
a product development plan to launch a 0.4mm product within 6 months if its needed. All of these markeis are forecast to
be very high volume opportunities.

CAP-XX is also concentrating on a number of automotive opportunities including heavy vehicle engine cranking with its
truckStart product and micro and mild hybrid passenger vehicles with its powerModule product. The world wide interest in
these and other applications for the large cell has markedly increased over the past twelve months with numerous
modules being shipped fo several customers for evaluation. Resuits to date have been very positive and whilst
discussions continue, it is anticipated that a number of these opportunities will evolve into future licensing deals for CAP-
XX or manufacturing joint ventures.
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_We expect licensee sales from Murata and AVX to grow significantly in the coming years, as more consumer applications
" adopt supercapacitor technology. -

One of the significant additional benefits of the Murata and AVX licencing agreements is that it validates CAP-XX's
technology leadership in the field of supercapacitor and energy storage, and the potential for supercapacitors as a
mainstream consumer electronics technology. The Murata and AVX product line and sales aclivities are also increasing
our exposure to markets and customers that were previously beyond our reach. Association with Murata and AVX is also
helping CAP-XX gain recognition, win acceptance for our supercapacitors, and reduce misconceptions about price and
performance. [t is also important that Murata's and AVX's strategy is to offer product ranges targeted at certain end
markets. As such Murata and AVX will not meet the product type or size requirements of all markets and all applications
leaving room for CAP-XX to supply these markets directly using products made by its contract manufacturers,

Strategies for Growth

The Company is exploring the opportunities in several new markets to leverage its strong intellectual properly and
engineering expertise through new license agreements or joint ventures, Given the increasing levels of market interest in
CAP-XX technology and high performance supercapacitors, the Company believes that the 10T and automotive markets
in particufar offer significant opportunities for growth,

The Company continues to engage in discussions aimed at securing business with a number of global OEM's. We are
strengthening relationships with these organisations and have regular engineering meetings together and with their
design teams and manufacturing groups or contract manufacturers. We are unable to comment on specific clients but are
pleased with overall progress and are confident that the available market for supercapacitors is increasing as
manufacturers become familiar with the technology

The Company will continue to explore additional opportunities to increase the product offering both through the current
distributors and direct to customers. These offerings may take the form of complementary energy storage devices and
modules.

Research and Development

CAR-XX's R&D efforts are focused on a mix of short, medium and long term oppoertunities covering further cost reductions
and improved product performance. CAP-XX has a research facility in Sydney, Australia, where a team of 16 engineers
and scientists work to maintain CAP-XX’s leading position in electrode, separator and electrolyte materials and their
assembly into supercapacitor devices. We also have a close association wilh several leading, third party research
institutions, whilst our Scientific Advisory Board provides the Company with clear direction on commercially refevant
technologies for our ongoing R&D programme.

The market in which the Company operates is competitive and is characterised by rapid technological change. CAP-XX
has a strong competitive position in all its target markets with its capability to produce supercapacitors with a high energy
density and power density in a smalt conveniently sized flat package. CAP-XX devices are also lightweight, work over a
broad temperature range and have an operating lifetime measured in years.

The Company's success depends on its ability to protect and prevent any infringements of its intellectual property. To
protect, this important asset the Company has considerable intellectual properly embodied in its patents covering the
design, manufacture and use of its high performance supercapacitors. The CAP-XX patent porifolio currently consists of
22 patent. The Company's intellectual property strategy has been to build company value by focusing on opportunities to
capture market share and exclude competition with an IP portfolio capable of generating licensing revenue. The directors
believe comprehensive embodiments and interlocking patent groups, combined with a ‘quick to file, quick to abandon'
policy, have given the Company a strong and focused [P portfolio.

Outlook
The major short term focus for CAP-XX is to drive the adoption of the Company's intellectual property and products, bath

large and small, into key target markets through future licence deals; joint ventures and direct product sales. The
Company expects to see further significant progress over the next twelve months.
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. Directors’ report

Your direciors present their report on the consolidated entity {referred to hereafter as the Group) consisting of CAP-XX
Limited (the Company or CAP-XX) and the entities it controtled at the end of, or during, the year ended 30 June 2016.

Directors
The following persons were directors of CAP-XX Limited during the financial year and up to the date of this report:

Patrick Elliott Chairman
Bruce Grey Non-Executive Director
Anthony Kongats Managing Director

Principal activities
The Group's principal continuing activities during the finaneial year consisted of the development, manufacture and sale
of supercapacitors. There have been no significant changes in the nature of the Group's activities.

Dividends
No dividends were paid, declared or recommended during the financial year or since 30 June 2016.

Review of operations

The Group experienced net losses of $1,292,252 during the year ended 30 June 2016 (2015: loss of $1,880,338).
Information on the operations and financial position of the Group and its business strategies and prospects is set out on
pages 6 o 7 of this Annual Report.

Significant changes in the state of affairs
There were no significant changes in the group's state of affairs during the financial year ended 30 June 2016.

Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year
The necessary paperwork associated with the receipt of the R&D Tax rebate for the 2016 financial year has been lodged
with the relevant Government authorities and the quantum expected to be received is similar to past years.

Likely developments and expected results of operations
information on likely developments in the Group's operations and the expected results of operations have not been
included in this report because the directors believe it would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Group.

Environmental regulation

The Group holds an Environment Protection licence and is subject to standard waste management environmental
regulations in respect of its research and manufacturing activities conducted at Lane Cove, Sydney, Australia. The
licence requires discharges to air and water to be below specified levels of contaminants, and solid wastes o be removed
to an appropriate disposal facility. These requirements arise under the Clean Air Act 1961, Clean Waters Act 1870,
Poliution Ceontrol Act 1970, Noise Control Act 1975 and the Waste Minimisation & Management Act 1995.

During the year there were no breaches of the regulatory requirements.
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Directors’ report {continued)

Information on directors
Patrick Elliott Non-executive director, Age 64.

Experience and qualifications

Pat is a company director specialising in the resources sector with 40 years experience in investment and corporate
management. His early career was af Consolidated Gold Fields Australia Limited and covered investment analysis and
management, minerals marketing (copper, tin, rutife and zircon). In 1979 he went into investment banking and became
Head of Corporate Finance for Morgan Grenfell Australia Limited in 1982, Pat subsequently became Managing Director
of Natcorp Investments Ltd in 1986 which owned a number of manufacturing businesses. After its takeover he became
an active early stage venture capital investor with an emphasis on resources. He is Chairman of Argonaut Resources NL,
Tamboran Resources Limited and Variscan Mines limited. He is also a director of Global Geoscience Limited and a
number of privately owned companies. Pat holds an MBA in Mineral Economics (Macquarie University) and B Comm,
(University NSW).

Specific Board responsibilities
Chairman of Audit Committee, Member of the Remuneration Committee

Interests in shares and options
5,480,802 ordinary shares in CAP-XX Limited (including shares held by Panstyn Investments Pty Limited).

2,385,000 options over ordinary shares in CAP-XX Limited (including options held by Pansiyn Investments Pty Limited).

Anthony Kongats Managing Director. Age 58.

Experience and qualifications

Anthony founded the Company in 1987. Prior to CAP-XX, he was the managing director of a manufacturer of passive
components before selling the business to a competitor. Previously, Anthony worked as a management consultant with
McKinsey & Company and held various engineering positions in Australia and Europe, He has a Bachelor of Engineering
degree (honours) in engineering from the University of New Scuth Wales, a Bachefor of Science degree from the
University of Sydney and an MBA from the Australian Graduate School of Management.

Specific Board responsibilities

Nik.

Interests in shares and options

8,660,333 ordinary shares in CAP-XX Limited (including shares held by Ducon Management Pty Limited and
Management Matters Pty Limited).

7,250,000 options over ordinary shares in CAP-XX Limited.
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... Directors’ report (continued) .

Bruce Grey Non-executive director. Age 70.

Experience and qualifications

Bruce most recently was Managing Director of the Advanced Manufacturing Cooperative Research Centre and previously
Managing Director of the Bishop Technology Group Limited. Bruce has been an Executive Director of two Australian
public companies and for 10 years until 2009, was Chairman of a German joint venture between Bishop and Mercedes-
Benz Lenkungen GmbH. Bruce has more than 20 years experience in managing industry R&D and 30 plus years
experience in international commercialisation of Australian innovation and has been directly responsible for creating new
manufacturing facilities in Germany, Thailand and South Korea and indirectly the US, all based on Australian innovation.
Bruce was Group General Manager of Clyde Industries Limited from 1985 until 1995. In 2005 Bruce was appointed
Chairman of the Federal Government's Advanced Manufacturing Action Agenda and is currently Chairman of the IP and
Commercialisation Committee for the Murdoch Children’s Research Institute and also Chairman of the Victorian
Government's Small Technology Industry Uptake Program, Expert Advisory Panel. In 2015 Bruce was appointed to the
Australian Federal Government's Clean Technology Investment Committee. Bruce is a Fellow of the Australian Academy
of Technological Sciences and Engineering.

Specific Board responsibilities
Member of the Audit Commitiee

Interests in shares and options
3,652,620 ordinary shares in CAP-XX Limited {including shares held by Grey Invest Pty Limited )

2,300,000 options over ordinary shares in CAP-XX Limited

Company Secretaries

The Company Secretary is Robert Buckingham.

Robert is Managing Partner of Allan Hall Partnership, Chartered Accountants, a position he has held since 1989. He has
a Bachelor of Commerce degree (honours) from the University of New South Wales and is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia and a Member of CPA Australia.

On 25 November, 2008, Michael Taylor, Chief Financial Officer, was appointed as Co- Company Secretfary.
Michae! graduated from Kuring-Gai College with a Bachelor of Business and from Macquarie University with a Master of
Applied Finance. He is a Member of CPA Australia.
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_Directors’ report (continued) .

Meetings of Directors
The number of meetings of the Company's board of directors and of each board committee held, during the year ended
30 June 20186, and the number of meetings attended by each director were:

Full Audit Remuneration
Meetings of Committee Committee
Directors Meetings Meetings
A B A B A B
Patrick Elliott 7 7 2 2 2 2
Bruce Grey 7 7 2 2 2 2
Anthony Kongats 7 7 - - - -

A = Number of meetings attended
B = Number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was a member of the committee during the year

Directors’ remuneration

Details of the remuneration of each director of CAP-XX Limited, for the year ended 30 June 2016, are set out in the following
table. The cash bonuses are dependent on the satisfaction of performance conditions. All other elements of remuneration are
not directly related {o performance.

Directors of CAP-XX Limited

2016 Primary Post-employment Equity

Cash Non-

salary and Cash monetary Super- Retirement Options Total

Name accrued bonus benefits annuation benefits $ $

fees $ $ $ $

$

Executive directors
Anthony Kongats 322,103 - - 30,600 - 58,190 410,893
Non-executive directors
Patrick Elliott 49,509 - - - - 17,872 67,381
Bruce Grey 49,508 15,858 65,367
Total 421,121 - - 30,600 - 91,920 543,641
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_Directors’ report (continued) . .

Details of the remuneration of each director of CAP-XX Limited, for the year ended 30 June 2015, are set out in the
fallowing table. The cash bonuses are dependent on the satisfaction of performance conditions. All other elements of

remuneration are not directly related to performance.

Directors of CAP-XX Limited

2015 Primary Post-employment Equity

Cash Non-

salary and Cash monetary Super- Retirement | Options Total

Name accrued bonus henefits annuation benefits $ $

fees $ $ $ $

$

Executive directors
Anthony Kongats 322,103 - 30,600 - 18,049( 371,752
Non-Executive direcfors
Patrick Elliott 43,481 - - - 6,839 50,320
Bruce Grey 43,481 - - - 2,811 46,292
Total 408,065 - 30,600 - 28,6991 468,364

Loans to directors and executives

The Group has no loans to directors and/or executives.

Share options granted to directors and the most highly remunerated officers

Options over unissued ordinary shares of CAP-XX granted during the financtal year to any of the directors or the 4 most
highly remunerated officers of the Company and Group as part of their remuneration were as follows:

Directors

Patrick Elliott
Bruce Grey
Anthony Kongats

Other executives of CAP-XX Limited

Alex Bilyk
Mark Hulme
Song Hee Lau
Pierre Mars
Michael Taylor

Date
Granted

4 December 2015
4 December 2015
4 December 2015

Date
Granted

4 December 2015
4 December 2015
4 December 2015
4 December 2015
4 December 2015

Options
Granted

2,000,000
2,000,000
6,000,000

Options
Granted

1,500,000
1,500,000
1,500,000
1,500,000
1,500,000

The options were granted under the terms and conditions of the CAP-XX Limited Employee Share Opticn Flan.

No options over unissued ordinary shares of CAP-XX have been granted since the end of the financial year to any of

the directors or the 6 most highly remunerated officers of the Company and Group as part of their remuneration.
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Directors’ report (continued)
Shares under option
Unissued ordinary shares of CAP-XX Limited under option at the date of this report are as follows:

Issue Price of Number

Date Options Granted Expiry Date Shares Under Option
19 September 2006 19 September 2016 $2.38 480,000
25 February 2003 25 February 2018 $0.71 160,000
S October 2013 9 October 2017 £0.085 3,310,000
21 April 2015 21 April 2018 £0.067 100,000
4 December 2015 4 December 2020 £0.050 20,900,000
24,950,000

No option holder has any right under the options to participate in any other share issue of the Company or of any
other entity.

Shares issued on the exercise of options

No ordinary shares of CAP-XX were issued during the year ended 30 June 2016 on the exercise of options granted
under the CAP-XX Employee Option Plan. No other shares under option have been issued since that date. No
amounis are unpaid on any of the shares.

Indemnification and Insurance of Officers

Indemnification

CAP-XX has agreed to indernnify the current directors and executive officers of the Group and former directors of the
Cormnpany against all liabilities to another person {other than the Company or a related body corporate) that may arise
from their position as directors of the Company and its controlled entities, except where the liability arises out of
conduct involving a lack of good faith. The agreement stipulates that the Company will meet the full amount of any
such liabilities, including costs and expenses,

Insurance Premiums

The directors have not included details of the nature of the liabilities covered nor the amount of the premium paid in
respect of the Directors’ and Officers’ lability insurance contracts, as such disclosure is prohibited under the terms of
the contract,

Auditor’s independence declaration

A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set
out on page 15.
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Directors’ report {continued)
Non-audit Services

It is the Group’s policy to employ BDO East Coast Partnership on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties
where BDO East Coast Partnership's expertise and experience with the Group are important. These assignments are
principally tax advice where BDO East Coast Partnership is awarded assignments on a competitive basis. itis the
Group's policy to seek competitive tenders for all major consulting projects.

Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor (BDO East Coast Partnership) for audit and non-audit services
provided, during the year, are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

Auditor
BDO East Coast Partnership continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act 2001.

This report is made in accordance with a resoiution of the directors.

Pafrick EMott
Direclo

Sydney
4th October, 2016
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PECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY GARETH FEW TO THE DIRECTORS OF CAP-XX LIMITED

As lead auditor of CAP-XX Limited for the year ended 30 June 2016, | declare that, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, there have been:
1. No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2007 in

relation to the audit; and
2. No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of CAP-XX Limited and the entities it controtied during the year.

Jarihi. S

Gareth Few
Partner

Sydney, 4 October 2016

BDO East Coast Partnership ABN 83 236 985 726 45 a member of a nationzl association of independent entities which are all members of 300 {Australia) Ltd
ABN 77 050 110 275, an Austratian company limited by guarantee. DO East Coast Partnership and 800 (Australia) Ltd are members of BDO International
Ltd, a UK company limited by guarantee, and form part of the international BDC network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme
approved under Professional Standards Legislation, other than for the acts or omissions of financial services licensees.



' Corporate Governance Statement

Over the past year the Board has conducted the affairs of the Company in accordance with principles of good corporate
governance.

Whilst companies whose shares are listed on AlM are not formally required to comply with the Combined Cade on
Corparate Governance (September 2012), the Board supports the Code and applies it in so far as is practicable and
appropriate for a public company of its size. The Board is committed to ensuring that high standards of corporate
governance are maintained.

There is a clear division of responsibility between the Chairman and the Managing Director. The Board comprises three
directors, two of whom are independent non-executive directors. Although the non-executive directors are shareholders
of the Company, given the size of their shareholding and that none of the non-executive directors have any day-to-day
involvement in the running of the business, the Company considers the non-executive directors to be independent.

The Board is responsible for overall strategy, the policy and decision making framework in which this stralegy is
implemented, approvat of budgets, monitoring performance, and risk management.

The Board meets at regular scheduled intervals and follows a formal agenda. It also meets as and when reguired. During
the year ended 30 June 2016, eleven Board meetings were held.

The directors may take independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
Board Committees

The Company has an audit committee and a remuneration committee both consisting of two non-executive directors. The
terms of reference and composition of the audit and remuneration commitiees were determined as part of the process of
the listing of the Company. During the year ended 30 June 20186, two audit committee and two remuneration commitiee
meetings were held. Each committee is to meet at least twice a year.

The audit commiitee comprises Patrick Elliott (Chairman), and Bruce Grey, The remuneration committee comprises
Patrick Elliott {Chairman), and Bruce Grey.

The audit committee assists the Board with its oversight responsibilities for the financial statements, the integrity of
financial reporting and the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls over financial reporting.

The remuneration commitiee determines, agrees and reviews with the Board the framework or broad policy for the
remuneration of the Company’'s Chairman and executives and within the terms of the agreed policy {in consultation with
the Chairman and/or chief executive as appropriate) determines the total individual remuneration package of each senior
executive. The remuneration committee also reviews and notes annually the remuneration trends across the Group.

Code of Conduct

The Company has a policy in place that complies with its obligations under Rule 21 of the AIM listing rules which
provides that "the Company must ensure that ifs directors and applicable employees do not deal in any of its AiM
securities during a closed period”.

Relationships with Shareholders

The Beard understands the need for clear communications with its shareholders. [n addition to presentations after
publication of results and the annual general meeting, meetings are held with fund managers, analysts, and institutional
investors. Information is posted on the Company’s web site, www.cap-xx.com.

Intellectual Property

The Board has always been vigilant in managing the Company's intellectual property ("IP”} portfolic which currently
consists of 21 patent families with 45 granted national patents (15 USA, 7 US continuations and 18 in Eurcpe, 2 in Japan
and 3 in China) with an additional 18 applications pending in various jurisdictions, The Company's P strategy has been
to build company value by focusing on opportunities to capture market share and exclude competition with an IP portfolio
capable of generating licensing revenue. The directors believe comprehensive embodiments and interlocking patent
groups, combinad with a ‘quick to file, quick to abandon’ policy, have given the Company a strong and focused IP
portfolic.
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This financial report covers the Group consisting of CAP-XX Limited and its subsidiaries, The financial
report is presented in Australian Dollars.

CAP-XX Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its principal place
of business is:

Units 2-10
12 Mars Road
Lane Cove NSW 2066

Its registered office is:

Suite 126
117 Old Pittwater Road
Brookvale NSW 2100

A description of the nature of the Group's operations and its principal activities is included in the Chairman's
statement on page 5, business review on pages 6 to7 and in the directors’ report on pages 8 to 14, all of
which are not part of this financial report.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the directers on 31 August 2016, The Directors have the
power to amend and reissue the financial report.

Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our corporate reporting is timely, complete, and
available globally at minimum cost to the Group. All press releases, financial reports and other information
are available at our Investors' Centre an our website: www.cap-xx.com.
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CAP-XX Limited -
Statement of profit or loss
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Currency: Australian Dollars

Revenue from continuing operations

Cost of sales
Gross Profit

Other revenue
Other income

General and administrative expenses
Process and engineering expenses
Selling and marketing expenses
Research and development expenses
Other expenses

Loss before income tax

Income tax benefit
Net loss for the year

Loss atfributable to owners of CAP-XX Limited

Earnings per share for loss attributable to the
ordinary equity holders of the Company
Basic loss per share

Diluted loss per share

Notes

30
30

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ 5
4,965,448 4,434,642
(2,359,612) (3,080,361}
2,605,836 1,354,281
25,597 21,011
1,867,444 1,312,336
{2,589,480) (2,046,151)
{885,418) (564,197)
(664,239) (584,821)
{1,548,300) (1,308,971)
{103,692) (65,826)
{1,292,252) (1,880,338}
{1,292,252) (1,880,338}
{1,292,252) {1,880,338)
Cents Cents
(0.5) (1.3)
(0.5) (1.3)

The above statement of profit or loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,
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"CAP-XX Limited
Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Consolidated

2016 2015
Currency: Australian Dollars Notes $ 3
l.oss for the year (1,292,252) (1,880,338)
Other comprehensive income
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations 20 {45,042) (139,539}
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax (45,042} (139,539}
Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to owners of CAP-XX Limited (1,337,294) (2,019,877}

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page 19



“CAP-XX Limited

Statement of financial position

As at 30 June 2016

Currency: Australian Dollars

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Inventories

Other

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Other

Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Payables

Provisions

Secured Loans

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Reserves
Accumulated losses
TOTAL EQUITY

Notes

10
11
12

13
14

15
16
17

18

19
20
20

Consolidated

June 30, 2016

June 30, 2015

$ $

331,631 2,643,418
2,078,941 685,192
1,365,524 1,409,463
1,700,147 1,252,158
5,476,243 5,990,231
364,685 301,272
236,507 236,507
601,202 537,779
6,077,445 6,528,010
642,358 1,074,711
663,069 915,862
1,000,000 -
2,305,427 1,890,573
65,664 42,487
65,664 42,487
2,371,091 2,033,060
3,706,354 4,494,950
94,558,726 94,426,347
4,035,574 3,664,297
(94,887,946} (93,595,694)
3,706,354 4,494,950

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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_ CAP-XX Limited

' Statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 30 June 2016

Currency: Australian Dollars Notes

Balance as 1 July 2014

Loss for the period as reported in
the 2015 financial statements

Other comprehensive income

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners:

Contributions of equity, net of
transaction costs 19

Employee share options - value of
employee services 20

Balance at 30 June 2015

Loss for the period as reported in
the 2016 financial statements

Other comprehensive income

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners:

Contributions of equity, net of
transaction costs and tax 19

Employee share options - value of
employee services 20

Balance af 30 June 2016

Consolidated

Contributed Accumulated
Equity Reserves losses Total
$ $ $ $

90,293,839 3,676,779 (81,715,356} 2,255,262
- - (1,880,338) {1,880,338)
- {139,539) - {139,539)
4,132,508 - - 4,132,508
- 127,057 - 127,057
4,132,508 127 057 - 4,259 565
94,426,347 3,664,297 {93,595,694) 4,494,950
{1,292,252) (1,292,252}
- (45,042} - {45,042}
132,379 - - 132,379
- 416,319 ~ 416,319
132,379 416,319 - 336,411
94,558,726 4,035,574 (94,887,946) 3,706,354

The above stafement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CAP-XX Limited
‘Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Currency: Australian Dollars

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and

services tax)

Payments to suppliers and employees {inclusive of

goods and services tax)

Tax credit received
Grants received
Interest received

Net cash (outflow) from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares (net of costs)
Proceeds from Loan

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Net {(decrease)fincrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the

financial year

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
financial year

Notes

276

19

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ 3
4,167,729 4,716,519

(8,466,934) (8,067,711)

(4,299,205) (3,351,192)
1,127,272 1,172,447

25,597 21,011

(3,146,336) (2,157,734)
(252,788) (92,214)
(252,788) (92,214)

132,379 4,132,508
1,000,000 -
1,132,379 4,132,508

(2,266,745) 1,882,560

2,643,418 900,397
(45,042) (139,539)
331,631 2,643,418

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nofes.
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CAP-XX Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2016

Contents of the notes to the financial statements
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
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6 Other income
7 Expenses
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12 Current assets — Other
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14 Non-current assets — Other
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CAP-XX Limited |
""Notes to the financial statements”
30 June 2016

Note 1 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless ctherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the consolidated entity consisting of CAP-XX Limited and its subsidiaries.

All amounts shown are in Australian Dollars, roundead to the nearest Dollar, unless otherwise stated.
(a) Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001. CAP-XX
Limited is a for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements.

Compliance with IFRS
The consolidated financial statements of the CAP-XX Limited group also comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Historical cast convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial staiements in conformily with Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

b} Continuation as a going concern

During the year ended 30 June 20186, the Group incurred an operating loss before tax and net cash outflows from
operaling activities as disclosed in the statement of profit or loss and the statement of cash flows, respectively. As a
result, there is material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore it may be unable to realise its assets and settle its liabilities and commitments in the normal course of
business and at the amounts stated in the financial statements.

The continuing viability of the Group and its ability to continue as a going concern and meet its debts and commitments
as they fall due are dependent upon the Group being successful with respect to the following factors:-

i.  The Group receiving the proceeds from the R&D Tax concession which has been lodged with the Austraiian
Taxation Cffice in August 2016, The guantum of the rebate is higher when compared to previous years;

il The ability of the Group to raise additional funds from shareholders and new investors. The Group has
successfully conducted a number of small equity placements over the last five years;

iii. AVX exercising its renewal option and agreeing to proceed with the License Agreement and pay £750,000 on
the Agreements Licence's anniversary date;

iv. Increasing prospects from existing and emerging markets are realised inio sales revenue with the Group
needing to ensure that product development and manufacturing capacity is available to satisfy the customers
product specifications and timing demands;

v.  Ongoing technology license discussions with numerous existing and new customers need fo be finalised to
ensure that ongoing revenue and cash flow is generated in a timely manner. Royalty revenue from existing
licensees is also expected {o materially increase over the next twelve months;

vi,  Continue the close and effective monitoring of the Group’s operating expenditure, including the realisation of
identified operating cost initiatives. The Board approves an annual budget and regularly receives forecasts from
management to monitor performance against budget and fo consider longer term prospects.

However, the Directors believe that the Group will be successful in achieving favourable outcomes on the above matiers
and that it will have sufficient funds to pay its debts and meet its commitments for at least the next 12 months from the
date of this financial report, and accordingly, have prepared the financial report on a going concern basis. At this time,
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CAP-XX Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2016

Note 1 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

the directors are of the opinion that no asset is likely to be realised for an amount iess than the amount at which it is
recorded in the financial report at 30 June 2016. As such, no adjustments have been made to the financial statements
relating to the recoverability and classification of the asset carrying amounts or classification of liabilities that might be
necessary should the Group not continue as a going concern

{c) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financiat statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of CAP-XX Limited
("Company" or “Parent Entity"} as at 30 June 2016 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. CAP-XX
Limited and its subsidiaries together are referred to in this financial report as the "Group” or the “Consolidated Entity”.

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the consolidated
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the entity to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities in the Group are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the fransaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Consolidated Entily.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. A change in ownership
interest, without the loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction, where the difference between the
consideration transferred and the book value of the share of the non-controlling interest acquired is recognised directly in
equity attributable to the parent.

Non-controlling interest in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separaiely in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Group.
Losses incurred by the Group are attributed to the non-confrolling interest in full, even if that results in a deficit balance.

Where the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets including geodwill, liabilities and non-
controliing interest in the subsidiary together with any cumulative fransaction differences recognised in equity.

The Group recognises the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any investment retained together
with any gain or loss in profit or loss.

{d) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consisteni with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segmenis, has been identified as the Board.

{e) Foreign currency translation

(D Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates {"the functional currency'). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Australian dollars, which is CAP-XX Limited's functicnal and presentation currency.

(ii}  Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setflement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss on a net basis within other income or other expenses.

(iii} Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy} that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows: ‘
. assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;
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CAP-XX Limited
Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2016

Note 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

. income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When a foreign operation is sold, a proportionate share of such exchange differences are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as patt of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are trealted as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entities and translated at the closing rate.

) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net
of returns, trade allowances and duties and taxes paid.

Sales of goods are recognised when products have been delivered to the customer. Sales of services are recognised in
the accounting period in which the services are rendered. For fixed term contracts revenue is recognised under the
percentage of completion method, based on the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services provided.
Where this cannot be reliably measured revenue is spread evenly over the contract term.

Licence Revenue in relation to the contracted use of the Group's patents or technology is recognised when the licence
agreement is signed, there is no additional expenditure to incur to finalise the licensed patents andfor technology and the
Group has the right to receive payment.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.
(g} Government grants

Grants from the government, including the R&D Tax incentive, are recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Income from
government grants, including the R&D tax incentive, is recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the right to
receive the payment is established.

(h) Income tax

The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
national income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements, and to unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected tc apply when the
assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted for
each jurisdiction, The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxabie temporary
differences to measure the deferred tax asset or liability. An exception is made for certain temporary differences arising
from the initial recognition of an asset or a liabilily. No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to these
temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction
did not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either {o setile on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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CAP-XX Limited

Notes to the financial statements =~

30 June 2016

Note 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised directly in equity.

Tax consolidation legislation

CAP-XX Limited and its wholly owned Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax consolidation legislation as
of 1 July 2002,

The head entity, CAP-XX Limited, and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group continue to account for their
own current and deferred tax amounts. These tax amounis are measured as if each entity in the tax consolidated group
continues to be a standalone taxpayer in its own right.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, CAP-XX Limited also recognises the current fax liabilities (or
assels) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from controlied
entities in the tax consolidated group.

Tax funding agreements are currently not in place. Amounts assumed are recognised as a contribution to {or distribution
from) wholly owned tax consolidated entities.

(i) Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in other long term payables.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases {note 23). Payments made under operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(i) Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assel's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use, For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

{(k} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly
liguid investments with original maturities of approximately three months that are readily convertible o known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

{n Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for
doubtful debfs. Trade receivables are due for settlement no more than 30 days from the date of recognition.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written
off. A provision for doubiful receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables, The amount of the provision is the difference
hetween the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate. Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.
The amount of the provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
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CAP-XX Limited
“"'Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2016

Note 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the
latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on a
basis of first in first out. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Raw materials held for development purposes are also stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, hence are
generally recognised in the statement of profit or loss as an expense when received.

(n) Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financiai liabilities must he estimated for recegnition and measurement or for
disclosure purposes. The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short term nature.

(o) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation, Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly atfributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred. Capital work in progress is not depreciated until the asset is installed and
ready for use.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the sfraight-line method to allocate their cost amounts, net of their residual
values over their estimate useful lives as follows:

Furniture and fittings 2-10 years
Plant and equipment — Manufacturing 2-10 years
Plant and equipment — Research & Development 2-10 years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 1(j)}.

Gains and losses on disposais are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
statement of profit or loss. ’

(p} Research & development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating to the
design and testing of new or improved products) are recognised as inlangible assets when it is probable that the project
will, after considering its commercial and technical feasibility, be completed and generale future economic benefits and
its costs can be measured reliably. The expenditure capitalised comprises all directly attributable costs, including costs of
materials, services, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Other development expenditures that do
not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subseqguent period. Capitalised development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis over its useful
life, which varies from 3 to 5 years.

{(g) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 55 days of recognition.
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Note 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(r} Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present [egal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may he small.

(s) Borrowings

Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction costs.
They are subsequently measured at amaottised cost using the effective interest method.

(f) Employee benefits

(i) Wages and salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be settled within
12 months of the reporting date are recognised in other provisions in respect of employees' services up to the
reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

(i) Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised as part of the provision for employee benefits and measured at
the present value of expected fulure payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary
levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted
using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that
maich, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

(iii}  Retirement benefit obligations

The Group does not maintain a Group superannuation plan. The Group makes defined fixed percentage
contributions for all Australian resident employees to complying third party superannuation funds. The Group's
legal or constructive obligation is limited to these contributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution complying third party superannuation funds are recognised as an
expense as they become payable. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

(iv} Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via the CAP-XX Limited Share Option Exchange
Plan and the CAP-XX Limited Employee Share Option Plan. Information relating to these schemes is set out in
note 28.

The fair value of options granted under the CAR-XX Limited Share Option Exchange Plan and the CAP-XX
Limited Employee Share Option Plan is recognised as an employae benefit expense with a corresponding
increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and recognised over the period during which the
employees become unconditionally entitled o the options.

The fair value at grant date is determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing model that takes into account the
exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of dilution, the non-tradeable nature of the option, the share price
at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free
interest rate for the term of the option.

Non marketing vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
vest, The total expense is recognised over the vesting peried, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be salisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The 2006 Share Option Exchange Plan and the CAP-XX Limited Employee Share Option Plan are both
administered by the Board of Directors of CAP-XX Limited. When options are exercised, the entity transfers the
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Note 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

appropriate amount of shares to the employee. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transactions costs
are credited directly to equity.

(v}  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for boenuses where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(u)  Contributed equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or oplions are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where such ordinary shares are subsequently re-issues, any consideration received, net of any directly atiributable
incremental transactions costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the owners of
Group.

{v) Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic eamnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Group, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year.

(i)  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eamings per share to take into
account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary
shares and the weighted average number of shares assumed to have been issued for no consideration in relation
to dilutive potential ordinary shares.

{(w} Goods and Services Tax (GST}

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the statement of
financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing
activities which are recoverable from, or payable o the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flow.

(x) New, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted

The consolidated entity has adopted all of the new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ("AASB') that are mandatory for the current reporting period.

Any new, revised or amending Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early
adopted.

The adoption of these Accounting Standards and Interpretations did not have any significant impact on the financial
performance or position of the consolidated entity.

The following Accounting Standards and Interpretations are most relevant to the consolidated entity:
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Note 1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The consolidated entity has applied AASB 2012-3 from 1 July 2015. The amendments add application guidance to
address inconsistencies in the application of the offsetting criteria in AASB 132 'Financial Instruments: Presentation’, by
clarifying the meaning of 'currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off'; and clarifies that some gross settlement
systems may be considered to be equivalent to net settlement.

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The consolidated entity has applied AASB 2013-3 from 1 July 2015. The disclosure requirements of AASB 136
‘Impairment of Assets' have been enhanced fo require additional information about the fair value measurement when the
recoverable amount of impaired assets is based on fair value less costs of disposals. Additionally, if measured using a
present value technique, the discount rate is required to be disclosed.

AASB 2015-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (Parts A to C)

The consolidated entity has applied Parts A to C of AASB 2015-1 from 1 July 2015. These amendments affect the
following standards: AASB 2 'Share-based Payment'; clarifies the definition of 'vesting condition' by separately defining a
‘performance condition’ and a 'service condition' and amends the definition of 'market condition'; AASB 3 ‘Business
Combinations"; clarifies that contingent consideration in a business combination is subsequently measured at fair vaive
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss irrespective of whether the contingent consideration is within the
scope of AASB 9; AASB 8 'Operating Segments': amended to require disclosures of judgements made in applying the
aggregation criteria and clarifies that a reconciliation of the total reportable segment assets to the entity's assets is
required only if segment assets are reported reqularly to the chief operating decision maker; AASB 13 'Fair Value
Measurement” clarifies that the porifolio exemption applies to the valuation of contracts within the scope of AASE 9 and
AASB 139; AASB 116 'Property, Plant and Equipment’ and AASB 138 'Intangible Assets" clarifies that on revaluation,
restatement of accumulated depreciation will not necessarily be in the same proportion to the change in the gross
carrying value of the asset; AASB 124 'Related Party Disclosures" extends the definition of ‘related party' to include a
management entity that provides KMP services to the enlity or its parent and requires disclosure of the fees paid to the
management entity; AASB 140 'Investment Property': clarifies that the acquisition of an investment property may
constitute a business combination.

(v} New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended hut are not yet
mandatory, have not been early adopted by the consolidated entity for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2016.
The consolidated entity's assessment of the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and [nterpretations,
most relevant to the consclidated entity, are set out below.

AASB 9 Financial Instruments

This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The standard replaces all
previous versions of AASB 9 and completes the project to replace 1AS 39 'Financial Instruments; Recognition and
Measurement’. AASB 9 introduces new classification and measurement models for financial assets. A financial asset
shall be measured at amortised cost, if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, which arise on specified dates and solely principal and interest. All other financial
instrument assets are to be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless the entity makes an
irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on equity instruments (that are not held-for-trading)
in other comprehensive income ('OCI"). For financial liabilities, the standard requires the portion of the change in fair
value that relates to the entity's own credit risk fo be presented in OCI {unless it would create an accounting mismatch).
New simpler hedge accounting requirements are intended to more closely align the accounting treatment with the risk
management activities of the entity. New impairment requirements will use an 'expected credit loss’ ('ECL") model fo
recognise an allowance. Impairment will be measured under a 12-month ECL method unless the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition in which case the lifetime ECL. method is adopted. The
standard introduces additional new disclosures. The consolidated entity will adopt this standard from 1 January 2018 but
the impact of its adoption is yet to be assessed by the consolidated enfity.
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AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The standard provides a
single standard for revenue recognition. The core principle of the standard is that an entity will recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services fo customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard will require: contracts (either written,
verbal or implied) to be identified, together with the separate performance obligations within the contract; determine the
fransaction price, adjusted for the time value of money excluding credit risk; allocation of the transaction price to the
separate performance obligations on a basis of relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service, or
estimation approach if no distinct observable prices exist; and recognition of revenue when each performance obligation
is satisfied. Credit risk will be presented separately as an expense rather than adjusted to revenue. For goods, the
performance obligation would be satisfied when the customer obtains controi of the goods. For services, the performance
obligation is satisfied when the service has been provided, typically for promises fo transfer services to customers. For
performance obligations satisfied over time, an enfity would select an appropriate measure of progress to determine how
much revenue should be recognised as the performance obligation is satisfied. Contracts with customers will be
presented in an entity's statement of financial position as a contract liability, a contract asset, or a receivable, depending
on the relationship between the entity's performance and the customer's payment. Sufficient quantitative and qualitative
disclosure is required fto enable users to understand the contracts with customers; the significant judgments made in
applying the guidance to those contracts; and any assets recognised from the costs to obtain or fulfil a contract with a
customer. The consolidated entity will adopt this standard from 1 January 2018 but the impact of its adoption is yet to be
assessed by the consolidated entity.

AASE 16 Leases

This standard is applicable to annual reporling periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. To the extent that the
entity, as lessee, has significant operating leases outstanding at the date of initial application, right-of-use assets will be
recognised for the amount of the unamortised portion of the useful life, and lease liabilities will be recognised at the
present value of the outstanding lease payments. Thereafter, earnings before interest, depreciation, amortisation and
fax ('EBITDA"} will increase because operating lease expenses currenily included in EBITDA will be recognised instead
as amortisation of the right-of-use asset, and interest expense on the lease liability. However, there will be an overall
reduction in net profit before tax in the early years of a lease because the amortisation and interest charges will exceed
the current straight-line expense incurred under AASB 117 Leases. This trend will reverse in the later years. There will
be no change to the accounting treatment for short-term leases less than 12 months and leases of low value items,
which will continue to be expensed on a straight-line basis.

(z) Parent entity financial information

The financial information for the parent entity, CAP-XX Limited, disclosed in note 31 has been prepared on the same
basis as the consolidated financial statements, except as set out below:

{i) Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in the financial statements of CAP-XX Limited.
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Note 2 Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks; market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group.

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 331,631 2,643,418
Trade and other receivables 3,625,116 1,842,464

3,956,747 4,485,882
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 642,358 1,074,711
Loans 1,000,000 -

1,642,358 1,074,711

() Market risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional currency.

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising particularly from currency
exposures to the US dollar. The Group sells most of its products and services in US dollars, buys the majority of
its raw materials and pays its confract tolling fees in US dollars. Its USA operations are financed out of the net
proceeds.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group's after tax profit and equity for the year would have been $90,691 lower/ $98,760 higher (2015:
$126,606 lower/$139,267 higher) had the Australian dollar strengthened/weakened by 10% against the US dollar,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on the translation of US doliar denominated sales and
purchases of goods and services.

The group's exposure fo foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period, as expressed in Australian
dollars, was as follows:

2016 2015
usD GBP Other uso GBP Other
$ £ $ % £ $
Cash and cash
equivalents 138,674 3,496 37 166,267 19,843 5,800
Trade receivables 224,141 1,000,000 - 504,717 - -
Trade payables 153,397 9,929 - 440,640 28,669 -

(b) Credit risk

The Group has some concentration of credit risk. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of products are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history. Cash and cash equivalents are placed in financial institutions with
good credit ratings.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficieni cash, to ensure debts are paid as and when they fall
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Note 2 Financial risk management (continued)

due. The Group has experienced recurring operating losses and operating cash outflows since inception to 30 June 2016
as the Group is transitioning from development stage. Due to the negative cash flow position the Group has not
commitied to any credit facilities and rather has relied upon equity financing through private and public equity investors.

(d) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest-rate risk mainly arises from interest bearing assets, with the Group’s income and operating cash
flows exposed to changes in market interest rates. The interest bearing assets have been predominantly deposited at
short term fixed rates exposing the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.

The Group's exposure to interest-rate risk is immaterial in terms of the possible impact on profit or foss or equity. 1t has
therefore not been included in the sensitivity analysis.

{e)  Fair value estimation

The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded in the financial statements represents their respective net
fair value unless otherwise noted, determined in accordance with the accounting policies disclosed in note 1.

Note 3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are centinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

{a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Apart from the going concern assumption as discussed in note 1(b),
the estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

{b) Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies
(i Impairment loss on plant and equipment

The Group has continued to use the Sydney, Australia manufacturing site for the production of electrode material
and selected supercapacitor product lines, whilst the larger volume supercapacitor product lines are outsourced.
In assessing the carrying value of its plant and equipment, the Group considers whether previous impairment
write downs remain adequate and the current depreciation rates fairly reflect the carrying value of such assets.

(i} Fair value of share options

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via the 2006 Share Option Exchange Plan and
the CAP-XX Limited Employee Share Option Plan. The fair value of options granted under the 2006 Share
Option Exchange Plan and the CAP-XX Limited Employee Share Option Plan is recognised as an employee
benefi{ expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant date and recognised
over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. The fair value at
grant date is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The key inputs and assumptions used in
the model is set out in note 28.

(iiiy  Inventory provision

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future saleability of inventory for amounts in excess
of cost. The provision for inventory obsolescence is based on management's expectation of the fulure price of
inventory, taking intc account the age and condition and demand of the inventory and management's assessment
of future demand for the inventory.

{iv) Lease make good provision
A provision has been made for the present value of anticipated costs for the future restoration of leased premises.
The provision includes future cost estimates associated with departing the premise at the termination of the

current lease period and requires assumptions regarding the cost estimates and departure dates. The provision
recognised is periodically reviewed and updated based on the facls and circumstances available at the time.
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Note 3

v} Warranty provision

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

In determining the level of provision required for warranties, the Group has made judgements in respect of he
expected performance of the products, the number and frequency of customers who will actually claim under the
stated warranty and the costs of fulfilling the conditions of the warranty. The provision is based on estimates
generated from historical warranty data associated with similar products and services.

Note 4 Segment information

(a) Description of segments

Management has determined the operating segment based on the reporis reviewed by the Board that are used to make
strategic decisions. Management has identified one reportable segment which is the development, manufacture and

sale of supercapacitors.

Although the Group is managed on a global basis, it generates revenue in 3 main geographical areas being Asia Pacific,

North America and Europe. Segment revenues are allocated based on the country in which the user is located

30 June 2016

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross (Loss)/Profit

Interest revenue
Other income

General and administrative expenses
Process and engineering expenses
Selling and marketing expenses
Research and development expenses
Other expenses

(Loss)/Profit before income tax
Net (loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences arising in translation of
foreign operations

Total comprehensive income, net of tax

Total assets
Total liabilities

(Loss)/Profit before income tax includes the
following specific expenses:

Interest expense

Depreciation

Share based payments

Geographical Segments

North
Asia Pacifie Europe America Total
$ $ $ $
1,771,189 1,188,365 2,005,894 4,965,448
(2,359,612) - - | {2,359,612)
(588,423) 1,188,365 2,005,894 2,605,836
25,597 - - 25,597
1,867,444 - - 1,867,444
(2,589,480) - - | {2,589,480)
(885,418) . - (885,418)
{664,239) - - (664,239)
(1,548,300) - - | {1,548,300)
(103,692) - - {103,692)
{4,486,511) 1,188,365 2,005,894 | {1,292,252)
(4,486,511) 1,188,365 2,005,894 | {1,292,252)
{45,042) - - (45,042)
{4,531,533) 1,188,365 2,005,894 | {1,337,294)
6,077,445 - - 6,077,445
2,371,091 - - 2,371,091
189,365 - - 189,365
416,319 - - 416,319
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Note 4 Segment Information (continued)

30 June 2015

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross (Loss)(Profit

Interest revenue
Other income

General and administralive expenses
Process and engineering expenses
Selling and marketing expenses
Research and development expenses
Other expenses

{Loss)/Profit before income tax
Net {loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences arising in translation of
foreign operations

Total comprehensive income, net of tax

Total assets
Total liabilities

(Loss)/Profit before income tax includes the
following specific expenses:

Interest expense

Depreciation

Share based payments

Note 5 Revenue

Sales revenue
Sale of goods
Licence Fees

Other revenue
Interest

Geographical Segments

North
Asia Pacific Europe America Total
$ $ $ $

1,179,863 2,847,396 407,383 4,434,642
{3,080,361) - - {3,080,361)

(1,900,498) 2,847,396 407,383 1,354,281

21,011 - - 21,011
1,312,336 - - 1,312,336
(2,046,151) - - (2.046,151)
(564,197) - - (564,197)
(584,821) - - {584,821}
(1,306,971) - - (1.306,971)
(65,826) - - (65,826)
(5,135117) 2,847,396 407,383 {1,880,338)
(5,135,117) 2,847,396 407,383 {1.,880,338)
(139,539} - - {139,539)
(5,274,656) 2,847,396 407,383 {2,019,877)
6,528,010 - 6,528,010
2,033,060 - 2,033,060
168,106 - 168,108
127,057 - 127,067

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $
3,156,448 4,434,642
1,809,000 -
4,965,448 4,434,642
25,597 21,011
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Note 6 Other income

Foreign Exchange Gains - (net)
R&D Tax Incentive

Write back of Make Good Provision
Miscellaneous Income

Note 7 Expenses

Loss before income tax includes the following specific expenses:

Cost of sale of goods
Direct materials and labour
indirect manufacturing expenses
Total cost of sale of goods

Depreciation
Plant and equipment
Furniture and filtings
Leasehold improvements
Total depreciation

Other expenses - movement in provisions
Provision for credit notes / doubtful debts
Provision for make good on premises
Provision for Withholding Tax Diminution
Provision for returns and rework

interest Expense - Loan facility

Rental expense relating to operating leases
Minimurmn lease payments

Employee benefils expense

Share based payments

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ 3
17,907 185,064
1,537,925 1,127,272
249,856 -
61,756 -
1,867,444 1,312,336
Consolidated
2016 2015
$ %
1,913,692 2,613,609
445,920 466,752
2,359,612 3,080,361
186,115 162,681
1,968 3,500
1,282 1,924
189,365 168,105
(18,054) 6,194
- 71,839
108,159 777
(9,119) (12,984)
22,706 -
103,602 65,826
446,578 393,970
3,035,406 2,738,168
416,319 127,057
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Note 8 Income tax benefit Consolidated
2016 2015
$ $
(a) Numerical reconciliation of income fax
benefit to prima facie tax benefit

{Loss) before tax {1,292,252) (1,880,338}
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% {387,676) {564,101)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in
calculating taxable income:

Share based payments 124,896 38,117

R&D additional claims {511,345) {375,758)

(774,125) (901,742)

Peferred income tax (revenue)expense not
recognised - -
Benefit arising from tax losses not recognised 774,125 901,742
Income tax benefit - -
(b) Taxlosses
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has
been recognised 106,156,338 92,672,089
Potential tax benefit @ 30% 31,846,901 27,801,627

All unused tax losses were incurred by Australian entities. The deferred tax assets in relation to the tax losses will only

be obtained if:

i) the Group derives future assessable income of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit from the
deductions for the losses fo be realised, and

i) the Group continues to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by tax legislation, and

iii} no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Group in realising the benefit from the deductions for the losses.

(c) Deferred Tax Assets - not recognised

The balance comprised temporary differences

attributable to employee benefits & other provisions 535,820 628,908
Set- off of deferred tax liabilities (18,978) (122,171)
Net deferred tax assets 516,842 506,737

(d) Unrecognised temporary differences

Temporary differences for which no deferred tax asset
has been recognised 1,786,087 1,995,905

Potential tax benefit @ 30% 535,820 598,772

CAP-XX Limited and its wholly owned Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax consolidation legislation as
of 1 July 2002. The accounting policy in relation to this legislation is set out in note 1(h). CAP-XX Limited has not
recognised any tax conselidation distribution from or to wholly tax consolidated entities
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Note 9 Current assets — Cash and cash

equivalents Consolidated
2016 2015
$ 5
Cash at bank and on hand 323,638 312,764
Cash on deposit 7,993 2,330,654
331,631 2,643,418
Note 10  Current assets — Receivables Consolidated
2016 2015
$ 5
Trade receivables 2,040,702 668,007
Provision for doubtful receivables (16,761) {34,815)
2,023,941 633,192
Other receivables 55,000 52,000
2,078,941 685,192

Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables are as follows:

Consolidated

2016 2015
5 $
Opening balance 34,815 28,621
Additional provisions recognised 16,761 34,815
Unused amounts reversed (34,815) (28,621)
Closing balance 16,761 34,815

(b) Past due but not impaired
There were no {rade receivables at 30 June 2016 that were past due but not impaired (2015: Nil).

{c) Fair value and credit risk

Bue to the short-term nature of these receivables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value. The
current receivables are non-interest bearing. Further information relating to amounts due from related parlies is set out in
note 25. There is some concentration of credit risk with respect to current receivables, as the Group has a limited number
of customers, internationally dispersed. The total amount outstanding is comprised of 10 customers with the top 4
making up 96% cof the tofal balance.

(d)  Foreign exchange and interest rate risk

Information about the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk and interest rate risk in relation to trade and other
receivables is provided in note 2.
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Note 11  Current assets - Inventories

Raw materials and stores - net realisable value
Finished goods - net realisable value

Note 12  Current assets — Other

Research & Development - Tax Credit
Prepayments
Other

Note 13 Non-current assets — Property,

plant and equipment

Plant and equipment at cost
Accumulated depreciation
Capital Works in Prograss
Net book amount

Furniture and fittings at cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Leasehaold improvements at cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book amount

Total property, plani and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total net book amount

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ 5
812,603 737,355
552,921 672,108
1,365,524 1,409,463
Consolidated
2016 2015
$ 3
1,546,175 1,127,272
143,421 72,821
10,551 52,065
1,700,147 1,252,158
Consolidated
2016 2015
$ L
16,542,715 16,288,966
(16,193,474) (16,007,358)
9,271 15,685
358,512 297,203
66,779 66,779
{65,960) {63,992)
819 2,787
448,010 442,647
{442,646) {441,365)
5,364 1,282
17,066,775 16,813,987
(16,702,080} (16,512,715)
364,695 301,272
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Note 13

Non-current assets — Property,

plant and equipment [continued)

Movement in classes of assets: Plant and l.easehold Furniture and
Consolidated equipment improvements fittings Total
$ § $ $
Year ended 2016
Opening net book amount 297,203 1,282 2,787 301,272
Additions 247,424 5,364 - 252,788
Depreciation {186,115) {1,282} (1,968) (189,365}
Closing net book amount 358,612 5,364 819 364,695
Movement in classes of assets: Plant and Leasehold Furniture and
s . . e Total
Consolidated equipment improvements fittings
§ $ $ $
Year ended 2015
Opening net book amount 367,670 3,206 6,287 377,163
Additions 92.214 - - 92,214
Depreciation (162,681) (1.824) (3,500) (168,105}
Closing net book amount 297,203 1,282 2,787 301,272
Note 14 Non-current assets — Other Consolidated
2016 2015
$ $
Rental bond 236,507 236,507

A term of the current lease agreement for the Lane Cove premises is a requiremnent for the Group to have a bank
guarantee in place as security for the landlord against loss or damage from any event of default. The rental bond of

$236,507 represents the current value of this bank guarantee.

Note 15

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued expenses

Current liabilities — Payables

Consolidated

2016 2015

$ $
496,023 874,345
146,335 200,366
642,358 1,074,711

The carrying amount of trade and other payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short term

nature.

Note 16

Current liabilities — Provisions

Employee benefits — annual leave and long service

leave
Product returns and warranties
Make good provision

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $
432,774 428,592
9,218 18,337
221,077 470,933
663,069 915,862

Page 41



~ CAP-XX Limited |
Notes to the financial statements ™

30 June 2016

Note 16  Current liabilities — Provisions (continued)

(a) Make good provision

The Group is required to restore the leased premises of its office/warehouse to their original condition at the end of the

respective lease term. A provision has been recognised for the present value of the estimated expenditure required to
remove any leasehold improvements.

(b}  Amounts not expected to be settled within the next 12 months

Provision for employee benefits includes accruals for annual leave. The entire obligation is presented as current, since the
Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settiement. However, based on past experience, the Group does not
expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave within the next 12 months. The following amounts reflect leave
that is not expected to be taken within the next 12 monihs:

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $
Annual leave obligation not expected to be
settled after 12 months 96,133 83,554

{c) Risk exposure

Information about the Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk is provided in note 2.

(d) Product returns and warranties

Provision is made for estimated product returns and warranty claims in respect of products sold. The Group provides a one
year warranty on products sold to customers.

(e} Movements in provisions

Movements in the product returns and warranties provision during the financial years are set out below:

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $
Carrying amount at start of year 18,337 31,321
Charged to profit or loss
- provision adjustment (9,119) (12,984)
Carrying amount at end of year 9,218 18,337

The product returns and warranties provision has been adjusted to reflect the decreased level of product returns from existing
customers.

Movements in the make good on premises provisicn during the financial year are set out below:

Consoclidated

2016 2015
$ 3
Carrying amount at start of year 470,933 399,094
Charged to profit or loss
- additional provisions recognised - 71,838
- over provision {249,856) -
Carrying amount at end of year 221,077 470,933

Page 42



CAP-XX Limited

Notes to the financial statements

30 June 2016

Note 17 Secured Loans

The Loan is secured by a general security deed over all assets and undertakings ( plant and equipment, intellectual
property and proceeds of the Tax Rebate) of the parent entity and subsidiary companies. Loan will be repaid no later
than 30 November , 2016.

Secured Loans

Note 18 Non-current liabilities —

liabilities

Employee benefits — long service leave

Note 19  Contributed equity

(a) Share capital

Fully paid ordinary shares (no par value)

(b) Movement in ordinary share capital:

Date

1 July 2104
5 November 2014
12 April 2015
12 April 2015
14 May 2015
14 May 2015
9 June 2015
30 June 2015

1 July 2015
07 December 2015
05 May 2016
30 June 2016

Details

Balance

Issue of shares

lssue of Shares
Share Issuance Costs
Issue of Shares
Share Issuance Costs
Issue of Shares
Balance

Balance
Issue of Shares
Issue of Shares
Balance

Consolidated

Provisions and Other

2018 2015
$
1,000,000 -
1,000,000 -
2016 2015
$ $
65,664 42,487
65,664 42,487
Consolidated
2016 2015
Shares Shares

270,171,965 268,653,677

Number of
shares Issue price $

114,459,249 90,293,839

1,768,116 $0.06 111,742

120,000,000 $0.02 2,327,503

{206,956)
30,769,231 $0.06 1,949,318
(157,099)

1,657,081 $0.07 107,999

268,653,677 94,426,346

268,653,677 94,426,346

385,356 50.13 51,026

1,132,932 $0.07 81,353

270,171,965 94,558,726
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Note 19  Contributed equity (continued)

(c) Ordinary shares

At 30 June 2016, there were 270,171,965 (2015: 268,653,5677) issued ordinary shares which were fully paid, with no par
value. Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Group in
proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote,
and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

{d) Options

Information relating to the CAP-XX Limited Share Option Exchange and CAP-XX Limited Employee Share Option Plan,
including detaits of options issued, exercised and lapsed during the financial year and options outstanding at the end of
the financial year, is set out in note 27.

{e) Capital management plan

The consolidated entity's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern that
it can provide returns for shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders and to maintain an optimum structure to reduce
{he cost of capital.

The consolidated entity would look to raise capital when an opportunity to invest in a business or company was value
adding value relative to the current company's share price at the time of the investment. The consolidated entity would
actively pursuing additional investments in the short term as it continues to integrate and grow its existing business in
order to maximise synergies.

The consolidated entity is sutbject to certain financing arrangements covenants and meeting these is given pricing capital
market decisions. There have been no evenls of default on the financing arrangements in the financial year.

The capital risk management policy remains unchanged from the 2015 Annual report.

Note 20 Reserves and accumulated losses Consoclidated

2016 2015
$ £

(a) Reserves

Foreign currency translation reserve note 19{c)(i} (228,956) (183,914)
Share-based payments reserve note 19(c) (i) 4,052,243 3,848,211

3,823,287 3,664,297
Movements:

Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance 1 July (183,914) (44,375)
Currency translation differences arising during the year (45,042) (139,539)
Balance 30 June (228,956) {183,914)
Share-based paymenis reserve

Balance 1 July 3,848,211 3,721,154
Option expense 204,032 127,057
Balance 30 June 4,052,243 3,848,211
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Note 20 Reserves and accumulated losses (continued)

(b}  Accumulated losses
Consolidated

Movements in accumulated losses were as follows: 2016 2015
$ 5
Balance 1 July (93,595,694) (91,715,356)
Net (loss) for the year {1,292,252) (1,880,338)
Balance 30 June (94,887,946) (93,595,694)

{c} Nature and purpose of reserves

() Foreign currency translation reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign conirolled entity are taken to the foreign currency
translation reserve, as described in note 1(e). The reserve is recognised in profit and loss when the net
investment is disposed of.

(i)  Share-based payments reserve

The share-based paymenits reserve is used to recognise the fair value of options issued but not exercised.
Note 21 Key management personnel disclosures

(a) Directors

The names of the directors who have held office during the financial year are as follows:
Executive director
Anthony Kongats (Managing Director}

Non-executive directors

Patrick Elliott {Non-Executive Chairman)
Bruce Grey (Non-Executive Director)

(b} Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation is set out below. The key management personnel include all the directors of the
Company and those executives that report directly to the Managing Director. The following were key management personnel upo
to the date of teh report unless otherwise stated :-:

Alex Bilyk, VP Research

Peter Buckle, VP Sales & Marketing (Resigned 31st July 2015}

Bernd Failenschmid VP Sales & Marketing Europe and America (Appointed 24th June, 2015, Resigned 18/12/2015)
Mark Hulme, VP Operations (Appointed 1st October, 2015)

Song Au l.au, VP Sales & Marketing Asia

Jean Pierre Mars, VP Applications Engineering

Michael Taylor, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Operating Officer

Dan Trujic, VP Sales & Marketing Europe and America (Appointed 28th February, 2016)

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $
Shori-term benefits 1,390,133 1,178,192
Post-employment benefits 132,063 114,647
Share-based payments 274,526 162,348
Total 1,796,722 1,455,187
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Note 21 Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

{c) Other {ransactions with key management personnel or entities related to them

There were no other fransactions with key management personnel.

Note 22 Remuneration of auditors

Puring the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the Group, its related practices
and non-related audit firms:

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $

BDO East Coast Partnership
Audit services

Audit of financial statements 61,500 61,500
Total remuneration for audit services 61,500 61,500
Taxation services

Tax compliance services, including review of company income

tax returns , employee share scheme and R&D Tax concession 36,600 36,000
Total remuneration of BDO East Coast Partnership 98,100 97,500

It is the Group's policy to employ BDO East Coast Partnership on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties
where BDO East Coast Partnership's expertise and experience with the Group are important. These assignments are
principally tax advice, or where BDO East Coast Partnership is awarded assignmenis on a competitive basis. Itis the
Group’s policy to seek competitive tenders for all major consulting projects.

Note 23 Commitments

(a) Lease commitments: Group / company as lessee

The Group leases factory space with an office and warehouse under a non-cancellable operating lease which
commenced on the 1% July 2015 and was due to expire on 30" June 2016. The lease has been extended by a further 48
months to 30th June, 2020.

The Group also leases office equipment under cancellable operating leases. The Group is required to give 3 months
notice for termination of these leases.

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $
Commitments for minimurm lease payments in relation to
operating leases are payable as follows:
Within one year 181,781 372,165
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 936,975 35,568
1,118,756 407,733
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Note 24  Related party transactions
(a) Parent entity

The ultimate parent entity within the Group is CAP-XX Limited.
(b}  Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 25.

{c) Key management personnel

Disclosures relating to key management persennel are set out in note 21,

Note 25 Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in
accordance with the accounting policy described in note 1{c):

Couniry of Class of
Name of entity incorporation shares Equity holding *
30 June 2016 30 June 2015
% %

CAP-XX {(Australia) Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100
CAP-XX Research Pty Lid Australia Ordinary 100 100
CAP-XX USA, Inc United States Ordinary 100 100

* The proportion of ownership interest is equal to the proportion of voting power held.

Note 26  Events occurring after the balance sheet date

The necessary paperwork associated with the receipt of the R&D Tax rebate for the 2016 financial year has been lodged
with the relevant Government authorities and the quantum expected to be received is similar to past years.

Note 27 Reconciliation of loss after tax to net cash outflow from operating activities

Consolidated

2016 2015
$ 3

Net loss (1,292,252} (1,880,338)
Depreciation and amortisation 189,365 168,105
Non-cash employee benefit expense — share based 416,319 127,057
paymenis
Foreign exchange differences - (185,041)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) in receivables (1,393,749} {126,387)
Decrease) / (increase) in inventories 43,940 {453,796)
(Increase) in other asseis (447,989} {8,113}
(Decrease) / increase in payables (432,354} 245,523
(Decrease) in provisions (229,616) (44.744)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (3,146,336) (2,157,734)
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Note 28 Share-based payments

(a) 2006 Share Option Exchange

The establishment of the 2006 Share Option Exchange {the “CAP-XX Limited Exchange"} was approved by the Group's
Board of Directors with effect from 5 April 2006. The 2006 Share Option Exchange provides for the issuance of stock
options for the purchase of ordinary shares of the Group's in exchange for the surrender of options previously granted
but unexercised in CAP-XX, Inc. The 20068 Exchange provides for the grant of share options for the purchase of shares
of the Group’s ordinary shares by officers, employees, independent contractors, consultants, advisers and directors of
the Group and/or any of its subsidiaries. The Board is responsible for administration of the 2006 Exchange.

Set out below are summaries of options granted under the 2006 Exchange:

Forfeited

Balance at Granted Exercised & expired Balance at Exercisable
Exercise start ofthe during duringthe during end ofthe atend of the
Grant Date Expiry date price year the year year the year year year

AS$ Number Number Number Number Number Number

Consolidated — 2016

Weighted Average Exercise Price - - - - - -

Forfeited
Balance at Granted Exercised & expired Balance at Exerci

sable

Exercise start of the duringthe duringthe during endofthe atend of

Grant Date Expiry date price year year year the year year the year
A% Number Number Number Number Number Number
Consolidated — 2015
1 July 2005 31 May 2016 $0.47 518,576 - - (518,576)
1 July 2005 31 May 2016 $15.64 8,004 - - (8,004)
526,580 - - (526,580) - -
Weighted Average Exercise Price $0.70 - - $0.70 $0.00 $0.00

The share options are governed by their original terms and conditions and will continue to vest pursuant to the same
vesting schedule.

No share options were forfeited during the year ended 30 June 2016 (2015: 526,580).

The weighted average remaining contractual life of share options outstanding at the end of the period was 0.0 years
(2015; 0.8 years).

(b} CAP-XX Limited Employee Share Option Plan

The CAP-XX Limited Employee Share Option Plan {the "CAP-XX Limited Plan"}), provides for the grant of share options
for the purchase of ordinary shares of the Group by officers, employees, consultants, advisors and directors of the Group
or a related body corporate. The Board is respensible for administration of the CARP-XX Limited Plan. The Board
determines the term of each option, the option exercise price, and the number of shares for which each option is granted
and the rate at which each option is exercisable, Unless otherwise determined by the Board an offer of Options must not
provide for an exercise price that is less than the volume weighted average sale price of a share traded on AlM over a
defined period.

Set out below is a summary of options granted under the CAP-XX Limited Plan:
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Note 28 Share-based payments {continued)
Forfeited &
Balance at Granted Exercised expired Balance at Exercisable
Exercise start of the during the during the during the end of the at end of the

Grant Date Expiry date price year year year year year year
$ Number Number Number Number Number Number

Consolidated — 2018
19 September 2006 19 September 2016 $2.38 490,000 - - (10,000) 480,000 480,000
25 February 2008 25 February 2018 $0.71 160,000 160,000 160,000
06 April 2010 06 April 2016 £0.56 1,225,000 - - (1,225,000) - -
08 December 2011 8 December 2015 £0.21 1,430,000 = - (1,430,000) - -
09 October 2013 08 October 2017 £0.085 3,870,000 - - (560,000) 3,310,000 2,258,055
21 April 2014 21 Aprit 2018 £0.057 100,000 - - - 100,000 54,832
04 December 2015 04 December 2019 £0.050 20,900,000 - - 20,900,000

7,275,000 20,900,000 - (3,225,000) 24,950,000 2,952,987
Weighted Average Exercise Price $0.47 $0.10 - $0.53 $0.16 $0.53

Options granted prior to April 2008 used Australian dollars as the measurement basis, whilst options granted after April
2008 used British pounds. This date corresponds with the listing of CARP-XX Limited on the Alternative Investment Market
(AIM) in 2008.

Fair value of options granted
There were 20,900,000 share options issued for the year ended 30 June 2016 (2015: Nil)

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted, during the year ended 30 June 2016, under the CAP-XX
Limited Plan was A$0.04 on 8 October 2013. The fair value at grant date is determined using a Black-Schales option
pricing mode! that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the vesting and performance criteria, the
impact of dilution, the non-tradeable nature of the option, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the
underlying share, the expected dividend vield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option.

The model inputs for options granted included:
{a) options are granted for nil consideration, have a:

o 4 -10 year life and 25% vest 12 months after the Vesting Commencement Date, and 1/48 of Total Option
shall vest on each monthly anniversary of the Vesting Commencement Date thereafter;
¢ specific vesting criteria in some minor instances.

(b)  exercise price: refer tables above

{c) grant date: refer tables above

(d) expiry date: refer tables above

(e) share price at grant date

H expected price volatility of the Group's shares: 83%
{g}  no expected dividend yield

(h) risk-free interest rate: 1.64%
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Note 28  Share-based payments (continued)

Forfeited &
Balance at Granted Exercised expired Balance at Exercisable
Exercise start ofthe during duringthe duringthe end of the atend of the

Grant Date Expiry date price year the year year year year year
$ Number Number Number Number  Number Number
Consolidated — 2015
19 September 2006 19 September 2016 $2.38 625,000 - - {135,000} 490,000 490,000
25 February 2008 25 February 2018 $0.71 160,000 - - - 160,000 160,000
19 December 2008 19 December 2015 £0.25 855,000 - - (855,000) - -
01 March 2009 01 March 2016 £0.20 50,000 " - (50,000} - -
06 April 2010 06 April 2016 £0.56 1,535,000 - - (310,000) 1,225,000 1,225,000
08 December 2011 8 December 2015 £0.21 1,760,000 - - (330,000} 1,430,000 1,274,267
08 October 2013 09 Cctober 2017 £0.08 4,400,000 - - (530,000} 3,870,000 1,66,932
21 April 2014 21 April 2008 £0.057 - 100,000 - - 100,000 29,863
9,385,000  100,,000 - {(2,210,000) 7,275,000 4,849,062
Weighted Average Exercise Price $0.49 $0.07 - $0.53 $0.47 $0.64

The Stock Options are governed by their original terms and conditions and will continue to vest pursuant to the same
vesting schedule. 3,225,000 share options were forfeited or expired during the year ended 30 June 2016 (2015:
2,210,000). The weighted average remaining contractual life of share options outstanding at the end of the period was
0.6 years (2015: 1.4 years).

Fair value of options granted

There were 20,900,000 share options issued for the year ended 30 June 2016 {2015: 100,000)

(c) Expenses arising from share-based payment transactions

Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised during the pericd as part of employee benefit

expense were as follows:
Consolidated

2016 2015
$ $
Options issued under CAP-XX Limited Employee Share
Option Plan 416,319 127,057
416,319 127,057

Note 29 Economic dependency

The Group is highly dependent upon a small number of customers and potential customers. Alternative sources of
revenue are being sought {o reduce fulure dependency on any particular entity.

The Group is also dependent upon Malaysian contract manufacturers to fulfil a large proportion of sales orders and
external shareholders due o the capital raising activities during the year.
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Note 30

Earnings per share for (loss) attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Group.

(a)

(Loss) attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company

(b}

(Loss) atiributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company

(c)

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominator in
calculating basic eamings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary shares used

as the denominator in calculating diluted earmings per share

Consolidated

2016 2015
Cents Cents
(0.5) (1.3)
(0.5) (1.3)

Consolidated

2016 2015
Number Number
269,048,064 146,059,771
269,048,064 146,059,771

Options are considered to be potential ordinary shares. The options are riot included in the calculation of diluted earnings
per share because they are antidilutive. These options could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future.

Note 31

(a)

Parent Entity

Summary financial information

The individual financial statements for the parent entity show the following aggregate amounts:;

Statement of financial position

Current assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net Assels

Shareholders’ equity
Issued capital
Reserves
Share-based payments
Retained earnings (i}

Loss for the year
Total comprehensive income

{i) Reconciliation to prior year retained earnings
Balance at beginning of period 1/07/2016

Net loss for the year

Balance at end of period 30/06/2016

(98,183,028)

(2,122,069)

(2,122,069)

(96,060,959)
(2,122,069)
(98,183,028)

2018 2015
$ $
1,762,101 2,384,829
1,762,101 2,384,829
1,121,873 172,273
1,121,873 172,273
640,228 2,212,556
94,558,726 94,426,347
4,264,530 3,848,210

(96,060,959)

(3,382,666)

(3,382,666)
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Note 31  Parent Entity (continued)

Contingent Liabilities
The parent had no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015.

Capital commitments - Property, plant and equipment
The parent had no capital commitments for property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015.

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies of the parent entity are consistent with those of the consolidated entity, as disclosed in note 1.
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Directors’ declaration

In the directors’ opinion:

(a) the financial statements and notes set cut on pages 17 to 52 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

0] complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and mandatory professional
reporting requirements; and

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company's and Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of
their performance, as represented by the results of their operations, changes in equity and their cash
flows, for the financial year ended on that date; and

{b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable,

Note 1(a} confirms that the financial siatements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The directors have been given the declarations by the chief executive officer and chief financial officer in the form
contained in section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

Patrick Eliott
Directo

Sydney
4 October 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of CAP-XX Limited

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of CAP-XX Limited, which comprises the statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2016, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company and the
entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with Infernational
Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s Respensibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the company’s
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an cpinion on the
effectiveness of the company's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

8DO East Coast Partnership ABN 83 236 985 726 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BBO Australia Ltd
ABN 77 050 110 275, an Australizn company limited by guarantee. BDO East Ceast Partnership and BDO Australia Ltd are members of 800 Intematienal Lid,
a UK company limited by guarentee, and form part of the internstional BDO network of independent member firms. Lisbility limited by a scheme approved
under Frofessional Standards Legislation, other than for the acts or omissions of financial services licenzees.,



Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations
Act 2001. We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which
has been given to the directors of CAP-XX Limited, would be in the same terms if given to the directors
as at the time of this auditor's report.

Opinion
in our opinion:
(a) the financial report of CAP-XX Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2016
and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i1} complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b)y the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in
Note 1.

Emphasis of matter

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial report, which indicates
that the ability of the consolidated entity to continue as a going concern is dependent upon the future
successful raising of necessary funding through equity. These conditions, along with other matters as
set out in Note 1, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
about the consolidated entity’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, the consolidated
entity may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

BDO East Ceoast Partnership
VY
L %/

Gareth Few
Partner

Sydney, 4 October 2016

Page 55






